
 

 
 

 
 
 

Individual Decision 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

The attached report will be taken as an 
Individual Portfolio Member Decision on: 

 

Thursday 24 March 2022 
 

 

Ref: Title Portfolio Member Page No. 
 

ID4170 A4 Benham Hill, Thatcham - 30mph 

Speed Limit Consultation 
Councillor Richard 

Somner 

3 - 12 

 

 

 
 

Scan here to access the public 
documents for this meeting 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



A4 Benham Hill, Thatcham 

West Berkshire Council      Individual Executive Members Decision 24 March 2022 

A4 Benham Hill, Thatcham 

30mph Speed Limit Consultation 

Committee considering report: Individual Executive Member Decisions 

Date of Committee: 24 March 2022 

Portfolio Member: Councillor Richard Somner 

Report Author: Gareth Dowding 

Forward Plan Ref: ID4170 

1 Purpose of the Report 

1.1 To inform the Executive Member for Planning, Transport and Countryside of the 
responses received during the statutory consultation of the introduction of a 30mph 

speed limit on the A4 Benham Hill, Thatcham and to seek approval of officer 
recommendations. 

2 Recommendations 

2.1 It is recommended that: 

(a) the proposed 30mph speed limit is introduced as advertised and that the objector 

is informed accordingly; 

(b) the proposed 30mph speed limit is monitored for a period of 18 months from the 
date of implementation in order to gauge its effectiveness and a summary of the 

findings is submitted for review by the Speed Limit Review Task Group if 
appropriate. 

3 Implications and Impact Assessment 

Implication Commentary 

Financial: The implementation of the physical sign works will be funded 
from existing Capital budgets as part of the Network 

Management team’s Minor Works Programme for 2022-23. 

Human Resource: N/A 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1.



30mph Speed Limit Consultation 

West Berkshire Council      Individual Executive Members Decision 24 March 2022 

Legal: The Traffic Regulation Order required to amend the speed limit 
will be processed and sealed by the Legal Services team. 

Risk Management: If implemented, the project will be managed in accordance with 

the Environment Department’s approach to risk management. 

Property: N/A 

Policy: The consultation was in accordance with the Council’s 
consultation procedure. 

 

P
o

s
it

iv
e

 

N
e

u
tr

a
l 

N
e

g
a

ti
v

e
 Commentary 

Equalities Impact:     

A Are there any aspects 

of the proposed decision, 
including how it is 

delivered or accessed, 
that could impact on 

inequality? 

 x  N/A 

B Will the proposed 

decision have an impact 
upon the lives of people 

with protected 
characteristics, including 

employees and service 
users? 

 x  N/A 

Environmental Impact:  x  N/A 

Health Impact:  x  N/A 

  

ICT Impact:  x  N/A 

Page 4



30mph Speed Limit Consultation 

West Berkshire Council      Individual Executive Members Decision 24 March 2022 

Digital Services Impact:  x  N/A 

Council Strategy 
Priorities: 

 x  N/A 

Core Business:  x  N/A 

Data Impact:  x  N/A 

Consultation and 

Engagement: 
Local stakeholders and road users were consulted on the 

proposed speed limit changes by way of statutory 
advertisement of proposed Traffic Regulation Orders. 

Affected ward members were also consulted on this proposed 
change in the speed limit as part of the statutory advertisement 
carried out last year and have been sent a copy of this report 

to comment on. Any comments received will be recorded 
accordingly during the ID meeting. 

4 Executive Summary 

4.1 The purpose of this report is to inform the Executive Member for Planning, Transport 
and Countryside of a response received during the statutory consultation for one 
proposed speed limit advertised as a result of the 2020-21 speed limit review and to 

seek approval of officer recommendations. 

4.2 One objection was received to the introduction of the proposed 30mph speed limit on 

the A4 Benham Hill, Thatcham. This report summarises the objection and makes a 
recommendation to the Executive Member that the speed limit be implemented as 
advertised. 

5 Supporting Information 

Introduction 

5.1 Requests for new or amended speed limits are considered by the Speed Limit Review 
Task Group, which consists of Council officers, Members and the Police. When 
assessing the request the Task Group consider current guidance (principally the 

Department for Transport Circular 01/2013 ‘Setting local speed limits’), traffic survey 
results, the number of recorded injury accidents and the local road environment. 

Following approval of the Task Group’s recommendations, speed limit proposals are 
subject to a statutory consultation process. Where no objections are received, the speed 
limits are implemented and new signs are erected on-street, but where proposals attract 

statutory objections, these must be referred to the Executive Member for a decision as 
to how to proceed. An objection was received to one speed limit advertised as a result 

Page 5



30mph Speed Limit Consultation 

West Berkshire Council      Individual Executive Members Decision 24 March 2022 

of the 2020-21 speed limit review and this report summarises that objection and makes 
a recommendation to the Executive Member. 

Background 

5.2 A Councillor Motion by Cllr Jeff Brooks supported by Cllr Keith Woodhams and also 

supported by Thatcham Town Council was brought to the 2020/21 Speed Limit Review 
(SLR) following numerous complaints from local residents relating to inappropriate 
vehicle speeds  in addition to a number of high profile incidents including one involving 

a young child. 

5.3 This request was considered by the Task Group at its meeting on 9th December 2020. 

The Task Group recommended that the speed limit be reduced from 40mph to 30mph 
and this recommendation was approved for inclusion on the 2021-22 Minor Works 
Programme by Individual Decision (ref ID3874) on 19th August 2021. 

5.4 A plan of the speed limit request is included as Appendix A. 

5.5 Following a delay resulting from issues associated with the Covid-19 pandemic, 

statutory consultation and advertisement of the proposals was undertaken between 
25th November and 16th December 2021. 

Responses to Statutory Consultation and Officer Comments 

5.6 At the end of the statutory consultation period one objection had been received.  The 
objector made the following point: 

“The only justification for a reduction from 40mph to 30mph at this location would 
be if there is credible evidence that there is road traffic problem directly attributable 
to vehicle speeds in excess of 30mph.” 

Officer Comment:  

5.7 Speed data collected prior to the review did indicate that whilst the A4 is a much used 

road, vehicle speeds were in fact reasonable for such a busy route and consistent with 
the 40mph limit. However the character and nature of the road have changed in recent 
years with the introduction of on-carriageway cycle lanes and new central pedestrian 

refuge islands near Pound Lane resulting in narrower running lanes for vehicular traffic. 

5.8 There have been a number of high profile injury incidents, including the unfortunately 

incident involving a child being hit by a passing vehicle, and several incidents of cyclist 
being hit at the A4/Tull Way roundabout. The continuing concerns from residents 
together with the Council’s aim to promote alternative modes of travel by improving 

cycle facilities along the A4 make a reduction in vehicle speeds desirable. 

5.9 It should be noted that the length of road subject to the proposed speed limit reduction 

is relatively short, with traffic signal junctions at each end and a roundabout in between. 
Reducing the speed limit will deter drivers from needlessly accelerating and braking 
between the junctions with no discernible increase to journey times, especially during 

busy periods. 

Page 6



30mph Speed Limit Consultation 

West Berkshire Council      Individual Executive Members Decision 24 March 2022 

5.10 It is acknowledged that reducing a speed limit may not necessarily lead to the desired 
reduction in observed vehicle speeds, therefore it is suggested that follow-up traffic 

surveys are undertaken. 

6 Proposals 

6.1 In view of the above, is proposed that: 

(a) the proposed 30mph speed limit is introduced as advertised and that the objector 
is informed accordingly. 

(b) the proposed 30mph speed limit is monitored for a period of 18 months from the 
date of implementation in order to gauge the effectiveness and a summary of the 

findings is submitted for review by the Speed Limit Review Task Group if 
appropriate. 

7 Other options considered  

7.1 Not to proceed with the proposed changes to the speed limit. As the proposed speed 
limit change has been subject to a robust process and having only one statutory 

objection, this option is not recommended. 

8 Conclusion 

8.1 The Council has a robust and long standing process in place to assess requests to alter 
speed limits and the conclusion of this process was that the speed limit at this specific 
location should be reduced. The proposal attracted one statutory objection when the 

draft Traffic Regulation Order was advertised and the points made in the objections 
have been addressed in Section 5 of this report. It is therefore considered that the 

revised speed limit should be implemented as advertised. 

9 Appendices 

9.1 Appendix A – Consultation Drawing No: SLR/20/05/002 

 

Background Papers: 

Individual Executive Member Decision report ref ID3868 

Subject to Call-In: 

Yes:  No:  

The item is due to be referred to Council for final approval  

Delays in implementation could have serious financial implications for the 

Council 

Delays in implementation could compromise the Council’s position 

 

 

 

 

Page 7



30mph Speed Limit Consultation 

West Berkshire Council      Individual Executive Members Decision 24 March 2022 

Considered or reviewed by Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee or 
associated Task Groups within preceding six months  

Item is Urgent Key Decision 

Report is to note only 

 
 

 

 

Wards affected: Thatcham West, Newbury Clay Hill. 

Officer details: 

Name:  Gareth Dowding 

Job Title:  Principal Engineer 
Tel No:  01635 519226 

E-mail:  gareth.dowding@westberks.gov.uk 

Document Control 
 

Document Ref:  Date Created:  

Version:  Date Modified:  

Author:  

Owning Service  

  Change History 
 

Version Date Description Change ID 

1    

2    

 

Page 8

mailto:gareth.dowding@westberks.gov.uk


30mph Speed Limit Consultation 

West Berkshire Council      Individual Executive Members Decision 24 March 2022 

Appendix A 

Consultation Drawings SLR/20/05/002 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



STROLLER CLOSE

38

17

27

310

11

1

467

8

SO
UT

HD
O

W
N 

RO
AD

440

TCB

Cycle Track

21

35

W
IN

ST
O

N
 W

AY

Letter

52

31

14

17

272

Box

454

BENHAM HILL

6

31
15

Shelter

23

BENHAM HILL

32

278

2

260
258

M
el

ia

Ho
lly

ho
ck

s

25

1

11

Dr
ai

n

37

66

16

10

276

Si
lv

er
th

or
ne

24

LONDON ROAD

9

TU
LL

 W
AY

282

284

Th
e

(horticultural)

TURNPIKE ROAD

Nursery

20

19

22

38

Pr
im

ar
y

7

286

29

BATH ROAD

11

278a

BENHAM HILL

438

LONDON ROAD

Pa
th

 (u
m)

436

259

241a

FB

29

255

4

12

Highrise

56

239

Moorstream

The Retreat

17

16

11

M
IL

L 
RE

EF
 C

LO
SE

5

Cottage

12

243

8

17

El

1

15

30

221

1

28

1415

257

50

FOXHUNTER WAY

LOWER WAY

27

10

41

11

241 Posts

219

44

27

18

RO
BE

RT
SF

IE
LD

61

AR
KL

E 
AV

EN
U

E

1

RO
BE

RT
SF

IE
LD

Sub Sta

39

Hall

12

2

23

8

45

6

253

1

231

13

55

60

221

2

12

26

6

1

207

259a

465

LOWER WAY

Water

Pump
House

Southlands
261

263

Tk

Dr
ai

n

Lower Henwick

Pond
Farm

Tk

TU
LL

 W
AY

9a

(Sports Ground)

15

Henwick Worthy

5

25

16

2

11

107

184
200

Cycle Track

109

5 115

101

107a

83

HEN
W

ICK LAN
E

LB

13

2

89

5

2a

27

35

12

31

4

43

1

7

BENHAM HILL

3

MS

TCB

137

230

244

9

PE
GA

SU
S 

CL
O

SE

El Sub Sta

Games Court

232

12

PO
U

N
D 

LA
N

E

15

7

220

210

2

254

BATH ROAD

8

1

190

W
AY

15

1

34

52

16

14

17

129

7

17

70

15

14

44

8

12

163

54

RYDAL DRIVE

3

RO
AD

24

12

37

9

82

1

1

84

93

10

ENNERDALE

ULLSWATER

10
6

DERW
ENT ROAD

13

WINDERMERE

WINSTON WAY

17

El Sub Sta

1 
to

 1
2

131

10

Playground WAY

117

41

10
0

Council Depot

46

97

6

73 20

34

El

9

32

11

Sub Sta

PO
U

N
D 

LA
N

E

42

65

2

151

90

143

6

71

1

98

51

1

81

DO
UB

LE
T 

CL
O

SE

19

42

1

5

RICHMOND AVENUE

10
4

5

El Sub Sta

63

8

CONISTON CLOSE

7

1

39

17

72

2

92

DE
RW

EN
T

18

1

Washington Court

46

16 32

1

10

95

4

22

1a

Playground

Shelter
7

Sarnia

2

TCB

1

El

45

7

79

Path (um)

HENWICK

67

97

WESTFIELD

LB

55

Tennis Courts

2a

47

1a

68

3
1

1

Sub Sta

LANE

74

4

23 28to

Community Hospital

West Berkshire

188d

188b

188
188a

39
37

Balancing
Pond

ROOKE'S WAY

Post

Post

Post

Balancing Pond

83a

28

62

5a

28a

Tk

55a

Mast (Telecommunication)

247

Lakeview1 to 4

L Col

L Col

L Col

L Col

L Col

L Col

L Col

L Col

Benham Gate

9

Kantara

93a

1

5
3

19

Lower Henwick
Driving Range

Club

Club

Reproduced from Ordnance Survey map with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown Copyright 2018.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. West Berkshire District Council 0100024151.

KEY
Existing 20mph speed limit

Existing 30mph speed limit

Existing 40mph speed limit

Proposed 30mph speed limit

NOTES
1. DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING.

2. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE SHOWN IN METRES UNLESS SHOWN
OTHERWISE.

3. THIS DRAWING SHOWS A PROPOSED FEASIBILITY OPTION
AND IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE.

4. WBC STANDARD DETAILS MUST BE ADHERED TO AT ALL
TIMES UNLESS SPECIFIED BY THE OVERSEEING
ORGANISATION.

5. PRIOR TO ANY EXCAVATIONS THE CONTRACTOR WILL
ESTABLISH THE LOCATION OF EXISTING UTILITY SERVICES.
THE CONTRACTOR SHOULD UNDERTAKE THEIR OWN UTILITY
SEARCHES.

6. THE PURPOSE OF THIS PLAN IS TO IDENTIFY THE VARIOUS
UTILITY APPARATUS LOCATIONS. WBC HAVE TRIED TO MAKE
IT AS ACCURATE AS POSSIBLE BUT WE CANNOT GUARANTEE
ITS ACCURACY, AS THE LOCATIONS HAVE BEEN DRAWN
FROM PLANS SUPPLIED BY EACH INDIVIDUAL UTILITY
COMPANY. THEREFORE, YOU MUST NOT RELY SOLELY ON
THIS PLAN IF YOU ARE CARRYING OUT ANY EXCAVATION OR
OTHER WORKS IN THE VICINITY OF THE UTILITY LOCATIONS
SHOWN. THE ACTUAL POSITION OF ANY UNDERGROUND
SERVICE MUST BE VERIFIED BY CABLE DETECTION
EQUIPMENT, ETC. AND ESTABLISHED ON SITE BEFORE ANY
EXCAVATION IS UNDERTAKEN. THERE MAY ALSO BE
FURTHER SERVICES UNKNOWN TO WBC. WBC ACCEPT NO
RESPONSIBILITY OR LIABILITY IN THE EVENT OF INACCURACY.

TRANSPORT AND COUNTRYSIDE
COUNCIL OFFICES - MARKET STREET - NEWBURY - RG14 5LD

DATE DRAWN BY CHECKED BY

REVISIONDRAWING NUMBER

PAPER SIZE SCALE

PROJECT TITLE

DRAWING TITLE

A4 LONDON ROAD & BENHAM HILL, THATCHAM
SPEED LIMIT REVIEW 2020

PROPOSED 30MPH SPEED LIMIT

SLR/20/05/002

SEPT 2021 CJV GDo A4 NTS

-I:\
Tr

an
sp

or
t &

 C
ou

nt
ry

si
de

\C
AD

\A
ut

oc
ad

\T
ra

ffi
c\

Sp
ee

d 
Li

m
it 

Re
vi

ew
 D

ra
wi

ng
s\

20
20

\S
LR

20
05

00
1 

A4
 L

on
do

n 
Ro

ad
 &

 B
en

ha
m

 H
ill

, T
ha

tc
ha

m
.d

wg

REV AUDRDESCRIPTIONREV DATE

GENERAL LAYOUT

Not to scale

LOWER HENWICK

FARM

THATCHAM

T

U

L

L

 
W

A

Y

T

U

R

N

P

I
K

E

 
R

O

A

D

B

E

N

H

A

M

 
H

I
L

L

H
E

N
W

I
C

K
 
L
A

N
E

A

4

HENWICK WORTHY

SPORTS GROUND

P

O

U

N

D

 
L
A

N

E

N

E

W

B

U

R

Y

A

4

B

E

N

H

A

M

 
H

I
L

L

HOSPITAL

L

O

W

E

R

 

W

A

Y

R
O

O
K

E
'
S

 
W

A
Y

P
age 11



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 12


	Agenda
	1. A4 Benham Hill, Thatcham - 30mph Speed Limit Consultation
	SLR2005002 A4 London Road  Benham Hill Thatcham
	Sheets and Views
	SLR2005001 A4 London Road & Benham Hill, Thatcham-SLR2005002




